occurs in the mld-eleventh century, when the manor ‘'was granted
the_monks at Winchester. It remalned almost - contlnuously
with- the bishops of Wlnchester until, as a result of the Root and
Branch Bill, it was sold in 1648—9; however, at the restoration
-~ of the monarchy the bishops of Winchester once again found
. themselves lords of the manor.

- The Church of All Saints is the oldest building in the parish and

dates - from about 1150, A stone marked *Amens Plenty" is
'thought to cover the grave of roundhead soldiers killed in a fight
préceeding the Battle of Cheriton (1644) during the Civil War.
Also of note is the black Tournai marble font of circa 1130 — 40,
“'which is one of four such fonts in Hampshire.

e

The bishops of Winchester held their memorial courts in the -
% mediaeval Court House which is the second oldest building in

. East Meon. At the beginning of the twentieth century it was used

. _to house farm workers and the Great Hall was a cow byre, but in
~--1927 the building was restored and is occasionally used for

- theatrical performances.
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Landscape
Feature

Attractive
River Reach

Downland

Woodland

River Source

Viewing
Point

Parkland

Trees
AN

Trees

Tree

Remarks

500 acres of downland in a prominent
position with fine views to Petersfield and
Portsmouth. An area of chalk grassland
with a history of scientific recording.
Fairly level summit with spurs running
out in every direction. Part of The Queen
Elizabeth Country Park.

Vineyard Hole, north east of East Meon.
About 30 m. deep, but only rough grass and
bushes grow there now. Partially surrounded
by a wire fence, and occasional hawthorn and
elm trees, there are also sycamore, an oak tree,
and a prominent evergreen oak.

The River Meon meanders through the parish
from its source near South Farm. It runs
beside the High Street of East Meon crossed
by several bridges.

Oxenbourne Down, Hilhampton Down and
Wascoombe Bottom, south west of Butser Hill.
168 acres of mixed yew woodlands, chalk scrub
and chalk grass land. Managed by the Hants. and
1.0.W. Naturalists Trust as a reserve.

Oxenbourne Lythe. A wooded slope between
East Meon and Butser Hill. An area of scenic
beauty.

Source of River Meon, south of South Farm and
East Meon village.

Southwest from Privett Road. Views over
Drayton Down, Emmet’s Down and Henwood
Down.

At Westbury House. Extensive ornamental
grounds on the lower slopes of Henwood

Down. The River Meon passes through the
estate. There are some fine specimen trees.

All Saints Church. Various species standing
in the area centred on grid reference.

Across entrance to Glenthorne Meadow.

An oak, chestnut, and three limes, all in good
condition, backed by a row of a further nine
limes. J

Recreation Ground. An oak tree planted to
commemorate the Silver Jubilee of King
George V in 1935. It now stands about 30 ft.
in height.

Grid Ref. and

Protection Punchcard No.
N.P. Act SU 710 200
S.S.S.1. 2305 63
A.O.N.B.
C.0S.
N.P. Act SU 684 221
A.O.N.B 23056 82
N.P. Act SU 676 222
A.O.N.B 2305 89
N.P. Act SU 710 190
S.S.S.1. 2305 140
A.O.N.B.
N.P. Act SU 704 210
A.ON.B 2305 83
N.P. Act SU 685 203
A.O.N.B. 2305 156
N.P. Act SU 673 233
A.O.N.B. 2305 84
N.P. Act SU 657 239
A.O.N.B 2305 139
T.P.0. No. 37 SU 680 223
E.H.D. 2305 15656
N.P. Act
A.O.N.B
C.A. SU 680 221
N.P. Act 2305 91
A.O.N.B
SU 683 220
2305 162
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Description
“gnd Date Remarks Protection

Group A — (cont.)

Trees Recreation Ground. A group of five chestnut
trees plus two copper beeches, planted in the
early 1960s.

Tree Mistletoe Cottage, High Street. A walnut tree

stands in the garden. Possibly the finest tree in
the parish, it may have survived from an orchard
recorded in the 1851 Tithe Terrier.

Trees Hyden Hill. A curved belt of mixed species N.P. Act
forming a pleasant focal point for a panoramic A.ONB
view of the surrounding farmiland and downs.

Viewed from the main road on Hyden Hill.

Trees Fishpond Cottages, Oxenbourne. An impressive
group of white poplar stands beside the cottages.

Trees Five lime trees in East Meon Churchyard. Approxi- C.A.
mately 20 m. apart, on the edge of the churchyard, N.P. Act
running alongside the road. Attractive trees A.O.N.B
approximately 18—30 m. high.

Sarsen Collected from War Hill early in the 1900s by N.P. Act

Stones (4) a former owner of Bereleigh House, and relocated A.ONGB

No. 22B as part of a water garden in the grounds.

Sarsen At the junction of High Street and Frogmore N.P. Act

Stone Lane. A.O.N.B

No. 22C

Sarsen Located at pedestrian entrance to Westbury N.P. Act

Stone House, near ruined chapel of St. Nicholas. A.O.N.B

No. 22E Probably parish boundary marker.

Sarsen Ridlington Farm. Possibly a boundary stone. N.P. Act

Stone A.O.N.B

No. 22A

Group B — Archaeological

Stone Age

Flint Site A Mesolithic site on the summit of Salt Hill, N.P. Act
and Neolithic artifacts on the lower slopes. A.O.NB
Important neolithic finds include re-chipped
axes and leaf shape arrowheads.

0.S.A. No. SU62 SE11.
Ref: Archaeological Newsletter, No. 5,
19565, (Draper), p. 199.

Axe Polished axe of Neolithic date found on N.P. Act
Oxenbourne Farm, 1919. 9% ins. by 2% ins. A.O.N.B
wide.

O.S.A. No. SU62 SE14.
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Grid Ref. and
Punchcard No.

SU 683 220
2305 161

SU 682 219
2305 160

SU 682 192
2305 157 ~

SU 694 211
2305 164

SU 680 220
2305 90

SU 678 235 ~
2305144 %

SU 682 220
2305 145

SU 657 239
2305 147

SU 664 236
2305 143

SU 673 202
2305 130
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Bowl Barrow

- Bowl Barrow

— (cont.)

Remarks

A secondary Neolithic site on Oxenbourne
Down. Considered to be an implement
factory site.

Salt Hill. Half mile north of South Hants
Ridgeway. Normal barrow of Wessex type
with flanking ditches, orientated north east
to south west.

0.S.A. No. SU62 SE12.

A cross-ridge dyke at the top of Harvesting
Lane, comprising a ditch with side banks
extending from above very steep natural
slopes. Part has been under plough for many

years and can only be traced on air-photographs.

One of a series set across ridges that give access
to Butser Hill.
0.S.A. No. SU71 NW1.

Barrow north east of Drayton House, under
crop. 40 m. across with a maximum height of
Tm.

0.S.A. No. SU62 SE7.

West of a spur of Long Down. Under pasture in
fair condition. Ditch not apparent. 25 m. in
diameter and 0.6 m. high.

O.S.A. No. SU61 NE3.

Large barrow in Hyden Wood. Tree covered,
with faint traces of a ditch.
0O.S.A. No. SU61 NE7.

In copse near Hyden Cross. 11 m. in diameter,

grass and tree covered. Site only of another

barrow.

0.S.A. No. SU61 NES8.

Ref: P.H.F.C., Vol. 14, 1938—40, Hampshire
Barrows (Grinsell), p. 358.

On north-east slopes of Hyden Hill. No trace

of surrounding ditches.

0.S.A. No. SU61 NE9.

Ref: P.H.F.C., Vol. 14, 1938—40, (Grinsell),
p. 358.

Ploughed down mound 20 m. by 0.5 m. north
of Martin’s Down. Scattered with large flints.
0O.S.A. No. SU62 NE19.

Ditches in the grounds of H.M.S. Mercury
(formerly Leydene House). Multiple earth-
work about 850 m. in length astride South
Hampshire Ridgeway. Series of two banks
and three ditches, centred on grid reference.
There is a barrow on the east side.

0.S.A. No. SU6B1 NE6.

0.S.A. No. SU61 NES.

Protection

> 2
o -
z»
ma

>z
ol
z>»
wso

>2
o7
z2»
wa

>=
o iy
z>
wa

>2
oX
Z>
wa

Grid Ref. and
Punchcard No.

SU 715 185
2305 150

SU 672 201
2305 131

SU 708 195
2305 134

SU 673 239
2305 127

SuU 669 197
2305 137

SU 692 189
2305 113

SU 682 189
2305 114

SU 689 192
2305 115

SU 660 261
2305 120

SU 679 193
2305 112
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"'Description

and Date

Remarks

Group B — (cont.)

Bowl Barrow

Bowl! Barrows
(2)

Bowl Barrow

iron Age
Field System

Field System

Field System

Roman

Sculpture

Post Roman

Boundary
Earthwork

Jutish
Buckle
Plate

108

In the grounds of H.M.S. Mercury. 135 m. in
diameter with no visible ditch. Tree covered
but otherwise in good condition.

0.S.A. No. SUB1 NEb5,

Two mounds and traces of a third on War Hill.

All are tree covered.

0.S.A. No. SU62 SE1.

Ref: P.H.F.C., Vol. 14, 1938-40, (Grinsell),
p. 365.

Large spread mound, probable barrow, under
crops. West of Tigwell Farm.
0.S.A. No. SU62 SE6. >

Contour lynchets average 2 m. in height with
cross banks up to 0.5 m. Centred on grid
reference.

0.S.A. No. SUB2 SE1.

Contour lynchets 1 m. in height on western
slopes of Salt Hill. Cross banks up to 0.5 m.
survive.

0.S.A. No. SU62 SE1.

North of War Hill on a west facing slope.
Lynchets under pasture and woodland on
average 2 m. high.

0.S.A. No. SU62 NE14.

Head of a woman carved in soft limestone

6% ins. high. Found at back of Redwood
Cottage. Probably of second half of C.2. A.D.
Now in possession of the British Museum.
0.S.A. No. SU62 NE21.

Immediately west of Peak Farm. A ditch

between two banks of a defensive nature

facing north. Centred on grid reference.

0.S.A. No. SU62 NE7.

Ref: Field Archaeology as Illustrated by
Hampshire, 1915, (Williams-Freeman),
p.p. 292-3.

Found east of West Meon Hut on A272

road to Petersfield. Rectangle of bronze-

gilt with a central garnet setting. Border of

animal pattern. Possibly found in a barrow

or mound alongside the road. Find in

Winchester Museum,

0.S.A. No. SU62 NE15.

Ref: Antiquities Journal, Vol. 17, 1937,
(Hooley}, p.p. 199—200.

Grid Ref. and

Protection Punchcard No.
S.AM.No.120  SU 680 193
N.P. Act 2305 60
A.O.N.B.

S.AM.No.109  SU 682 257
N.P. Act 2305 61
A.O.N.B.

N.P. Act SU 675 243
A.O.N.B. 2305 126
N.P. Act SU 655222
A.O.N.B 2305 124 §
N.P. Act SU 667 203
A.O.N.B. 2305 129 |
N.P. Act SU 682 258
A.O.N.B. 2305 117
N.P. Act SU 664 256
A.O.N.B 2305 122
N.P. Act SU 663 253
A.O.N.B 2305 116
N.P. Act

A.O.N.B



Earthwork

_Egrthwork

Remarks

Westbury, in the grounds of Westbury House.
On river level near the ruined Chapel of St.
Nicholas or on the hillside above.
Ref: 1. V.C.H., Vol. 1, p. 481.
2.V.C.H,, Vol. 3, p.p. 63, 68, 245—86.
3. Deserted Mediaeval Villages,
(Beresford and Hurst).

Mascoombe Bottom. No trace of the park
remains but the name is preserved in Park
Farm and Park Down.

0.S.A. No. SU62 SES8.

Ref: V.C.H., Vol. 1, p.p. 61, 67.

Site of St. Mary in the Fields Chapel, at Chapel
Field, South Farm. Mentioned in records as early
as 1318. A Chapel-of-ease annexed to the parish
church. No trace of a building survives.

Located in a field much ploughed south of Stock’s

Farm. Not possible to plot the earthworks.

Hundred = East Meon.

0.S.A. No. SU62 NE10.

Ref: Deser;ced Mediaeval Villages, (Beresford and
Hurst).

Period Unknown

Southwest end of Butser Hill, across approach

to summit. Probable cross dyke bank and ditch
separated by a berm. The main Ridgeway crossed
Butser Hill at this point.

0.5.A. No. SU72 SW11.

Cross ridge dyke of two parallel banks with ditch.
Cut in two places by tracks and densely covered
with furze. Probably of Iron Age date.

0.S.A. No. SU72 SW10.

Ref: Antiquities, No. 4, 1930, (Piggott), p. 138.

Rectangular plan, north-west of Great Copyhold
Copse, Peak Farm.
0.S.A. No. SU62 NE20.

k p C — Footpaths and Bridleways

Path runs from H.M.S. Mercury to Butser.
Centred on grid reference.

Alternative routes on Hyden Hill, Clanfield
Road centred on grid reference.

Protection
S.A.M. No. 268
N.P. Act
A.O.N.B.
N.P. Act
A.O.N.B

N.P. Act
A.O.NB

N.P. Act
A.O.N.B
S.A.M. No. 15
N.P. Act
A.O.N.B.
C.0.S.

S.A.M. No. 15
N.P. Act
A.O.N.B.
C.0.S.

N.P. Act
A.O.N.B.

N.P. Act
A.O.N.B.

N.P. Act
A.O.N.B.

Grid Ref. and
Punchcard No.

SU 657 239
2305 148

SU 680 230
2305 128

SU 680 230
2305 128

SU 666 266
2305 149

SU 712 200
2305 136

SU 711199
2305 135

SU 670 258
2305 121

SU 699 191
2305 85

SU 682 191
2305 92
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Description
anhd Date

Remarks

Group C — (cont.)

Ancient
Lane

Halmaker Lane. Runs alongside Westbury
Forest where it formed a boundary of the
Tithing of Riplington, and is marked as such
on the tithe map dated 1636. South of
Coombe Cross Lane the lane continues
southward, unnamed, until it joins the South
Hants Ridgeway.

Group D — Buildings, Monuments and Engineering Works

Church
C.12

Chapel
C.13

Building
C.14

Cottage
C.14

110

All Saints. Cruciform plan with ashlar faced

Norman tower of circa 1150. Lead covered

broach spire with small cockerel weathervane

added later. West doorway and several

windows of Norman date. C.13 south aisles

of nave and chancel Tournai marble font

circa 1130—40. Fine vigorous carving on

the sides and top. Church clock with four

faces and gold hands.

0.S.A. No. SU62 SE15.

Ref: Buildings of England; Hants and L.OWw,,
(Pevsner and Lioyd), p.p. 199—200.

Ruins of the Chapel of St. Nicholas, in the
grounds of Westbury House. Part of east wall
and most of west wall still standing, also large
part of north and minimal part of south walls,
Plain circular font removed to East Meon
Church. Restoration to ruins carried out in
1981.
0.S.A. No. SU62 SE3.
Ref: 1. V.C.H. Vol. 3, p.p. 74-5.

2.P.H.F.C. Vol. 2, 18903, (Nisbett),

p.p. 1-14.

The Court House. A manorial court house
whose origins date from Norman Conquest, or
earlier. Malmstone and flint fabric with
dressings and plinth of Langrish stone. Two
C.14 windows. South wall rebuilt C.17 and
gable tile-hung. Rafter roof with King-posts
and tie beams. Corbels carved with heads of
kings and bishops. 2-storey extension of
similar fabric, now a library. Original stair-
case of oak leads to an outside door. C.16
farmhouse at rightangles to court house.
Timber-framed with brick infill and tiled
roof.

0.S.A. No. SU62 SE9.

Forge Sound, formerly 1 and 2, Hockley
Cottages. Timber-framed with brick infill.
Tiled roof. Hipped gable ends with scalloped
tile bands. Casement windows. Sun Insurance
sign and Farmers Fire and Life Insurance

sign on gable ends. Originally an open hall
house.

Protection
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SU 668 232 11
- 675192
2305 165

SU 680 222
2305 01

SU 657 239
2305 04

SU 681 222
2305 06

SU 681 221
2305 45




Ottages
,14/15

Remarks

p D — (cont.)

Riverside. Two connected cottages of cream-
washed brick, partly timber-framed. Thatched
roof. The more southerly cottage includes a
wooden shuttered shop front, formerly a
butcher’s shop, with latticed wood-work for
ventilation, it also has a slate roof porch. The
cottage to the north has been provisionally
assessed as a one-aisled open hall house of the
second half of C.14, or possibly early C.15.

The Tudor House, The Square. 3 storeys. First
and second storey jettied on north and east
elevations. Timber-framed with malmstone
and flint filling, brick infill above. Casement
windows, original mullioned and transomed
window on ground floor. Tiled roof descends
to ground floor level on west side. Interior

has some oak panelling. South side plaster
faced. Western wing of the building is thought
to be C.14. The house is believed to have been
built for the bailiff of the manor of East Meon.

Drayton Mill. L-shaped plan. Timber-framed
with tiled roof and five dormers on south side.
Diamond-leaded pane windows. Mill race now

diverted. Site reputed to be in Domesday Book.

Sebastopol Cottages. Timber-framed with
brick and flint infilling. Thatched roof. Gable
end towards road of flint and rubble. Casement
windows.

Nos. 1, 2, and 3, Cross Cottages. 2 storeys.

. Timber-framed with brick and flint infilling.

Colour washed. Thatched roof descending
to door level at back. Lattice porches on
brick foundations. Casement windows.
Formerly the Angel Inn.

Forge Cottage. Timber-framed with part

brick and part lath and plaster whitewashed
infilling. East end gable is tile-hung. Thatched
roof with bedroom windows at eaves level.
C.18 extension at east end, partly tile-hung.
Substantial single storey extension on south
side.

Heycroft House. Situated on south west corner
of the square. 3-storey timber-framed house,
with brick infilling. Four bays, of which the
two more easterly are late C.16, the others are
early C.17. Most of the eastern elevation
infilling consists of herringbone brickwork.

The west elevation is jettied.

Protection
C.A.

N.P. Act
A.O.N.B
T.& C.P. Act
C.A.

N.P. Act
A.O.N.B
N.P. Act
A.O.N.B
N.P. Act
A.O.N.B
T.&C.P. Act
C.A.

N.P. Act
A.O.N.B.
C.A.

N.P. Act
A.O.N.B
C.A.

N.P. Act
A.O.N.B

Grid Ref. and
Punchcard No.

SU 681 221
2305 46

SU 679 221
2305 19

SU 671 230
2305 77

SU 679 219
2305 38

SU 680 221
2305 13

SU 682 219

2305 34

SU 687 221

2305 54
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Description
and Date

Remarks

Group D — (cont.)

House and
Gate Posts
c.17

Barn
Cc.17

Cottage
Cc.17

Cottages (2)
C.17

Cottage
C.17

Cottages
C.17

Cottage
C.17

Cottages (2)
C.17

House
C.17

Barn
C.17

112

Glenthorne, High Street. Brick with purple
headers and brick plinth. Rusticated quoins.
Tiled roof with wooden eaves and cornice.
Sash windows. Doorway with brick pediment
and moulded surround. C.19 cast-iron railings.
Farmers’” General Life Assurance sign. Recent
additions. Timber-framed back with tiled roof.
Round headed staircase window. C.18 gate-
posts of flint and brick with stone ball finials.

West of the Court House. Timber-framed with
brick and flint structure. Thatched roof with
weathervane. Converted for use as a garage.

Hookley Cottage, formerly two cottages.
Joined to Brook Cottages by a thatched roof
over a public footpath. Brick with some
timber work. Whitewashed front. Mainly
casement windows with glazing bars.

Brook Cottages, High Street. Plaster faced
brick with tile-hung upper storey. Thatched
roof with dormers at rear. Casement windows.

Mill Cottage, Frogmore. 2 storeys. Timber-
framed with brick infill. Tiled roof with four
dormers. Hipped gable end to road. Recent
porches. Sash windows on ground floor,
casements above.

3, and 4, Church Road. Timber-framed with
whitewashed brick infilling. Tiled roof, hipped
at west end. Casement windows with glazing
bars.

Hebberdens, Lower Bordean. Possibly of earlier
date. 2 storeys. Timber-framed with brick
infilling. Tiled roof. Diamond-paned leaded
casement windows. Bay window on upper
storey of south elevation.

Fishpond Cottages. 2 storeys. Timber-framed,
with mainly herringbone brick infilling at front,
some malmstone at the sides, which are partly
tile-hung. Double hipped tiled roof. Modern
extension at east end.

Oxenbourne House. 2 storeys. T-shaped plan.
Malmstone with brick dressings. Tiled roof
with tile-hung dormers. Timber-framed
extension to south with brick infill. Later
additions of flint and random rubble. Verandah
supported on four pillars. Leaded windows.
Farmers Life and Fire Insurance plaque on wall.

Oxenbourne House. Timber-framed and weather-

boarded. Single storey. Thatched roof. Large
modern doors at front.
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Grid Ref. and
Punchcard No.

SU 680 221
2305 15

SU 680 222
2305 07

SU 681 221
2305 43

SU 681 221
2305 44
SU 684 221

2305 20

SU 679 222
2305 39

SU 691 247
2305 03

SU 694 211
2305 26

SU 691 21
2305 6

SU 692 213
2305 9




Description Grid Ref. and
‘and Date Remarks Protection Punchcard No.

3 Group D — (cont.)
;A

iCottages (4) Nos. 1, 2, 3, and 4, Kew Cottages. 2 storeys.

=C.17 Thatched roof with hipped gable ends. Nos. 1
and 2 of flint with brick dressings. Simple hood
porches. Nos. 3 and 4 of brick with some timber

work.

SU 678 221
2305 36
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Nos. 1, and 2, Old Bell Cottages. 2 storeys.
Whitewashed brick with tiled roof and old
chimneys. No. 1 has some timber work on
western wall. Hood over door. No. 2 recessed
behind front garden with gabled dormer and
Elizabethan half dormer window. Formerly
The Old Bell Public House.

SU 680 221
2305 50
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The White Cottage, High Street. Timber-
framed with brick and plaster filling. Thatched
roof with central chimney. Restored with
modern window frames and doors.

Y

Act SU 680 221
2305 17

w2

Upper Bordean. Georgian style with Victorian
additions. Flemish bond brickwork at front,
and coursed flint at sides. Slate hung parapet.
Tiled roof. Part tile hanging on west side.
C.19 porch. Bay, sash and casement windows.

SU 689 250
2305 78
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Peak Farm. 2 storeys. 1728 Georgian front
elevation consisting of brickwork using purple
headers. Moulded brick cornice and parapet.
Tiled roof. Sash windows surmounted by flat
arches. Plaster faced stone door surround
approached by three semi-circular stone steps.
Older portion to north and west.

. Act SU 666 254
2305 02
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Wheelwright Cottage. Formerly two cottages.
Brick structure using purple headers. Tiled
roof, once thatched. Casement windows.
Farmers Fire Insurance sign. The western

part of the building dates from C.17, whilst

the bay to the east dates from C.18, added
when the front brick elevation was constructed.

SU 681 220
2805 48
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SU 679 175
2305 28

Hyden Farm. 2 storeys and attic and semi-basement.
Brick with purple headers. Tiled roof with two
gabled dormers. Casement windows on ground

floor with arches and shutters. South side tile

hung. Wooden porch with hipped tiled roof.
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Coombe Farmhouse. 2 storeys. Brick and flint
structure with scribed plaster covering at front.
Brick extension on south side, built in same
style. Modern brick porch on north side.
Casement windows. Three brick chimney
stacks, roof re-tiled in modern grey tiles.
Plaster covered brick porch with tile hood.
The cottages consist of one building, formerly
four dwellings. Random flint walls at front,
brick at back. Casement windows. Clay tile
roof. Brick porch,

SU 662 206
2305 73
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Description
and Date Remarks

Group D — (cont.)

House Coombe Cross. Formerly a farmhouse.

Cc.18 Brick with hipped tiled roof. Large Regency
porch with barrel shaped roof. Sash windows
with glazing bars. Addition of later date with
wooden verandah.

Farmhouse Stoneylands Farm. 2 storeys. Flint structure
C.18 with pebbledash covering. Slate roof. Case-
. ment windows. Originally two cottages. Very
old brick roundhouse in the garden, believed
to be one of only four left in Hampshire.

Cottage At South Farm. Adjoining the former Mill.

Cc.18 Single storey plus dormers. Roughcast brick
structure. Tiled roof. Tiled, gabled dormers
with tile-hanging. Casement windows with
cambered arches. The oldest part of the
building is the south east section. Red brick
extension to the north with slate roof and round
headed casement windows.

Barn Upper Barn. Single storey. Coursed flint with

C.18 brick dressings. Unusual brick dentilled ventila- .

tion apertures in walls.

Farmhouse Lower Farm. West front of malmstone and

C.18 brick. C.19 brick and tile porch. Tiled roof.
South side of brick, and extension pebble-
dashed. Sash windows,

Cottage Giant’s Cottage, Oxenbourne. Unusually large

C.18 random flints with brick dressings. Thatched
roof with central chimney. A large flint giant's
face is a feature in the front wall. Bedroom
windows inset in thatch which over-hangs on
struts. Outshots each end. Originally two
cottages.

Farmhouse Oxenbourne Farm. Brick and flint, with timber-

C.18 framing visible inside. Front pebbledashed and
whitewashed. Hipped gables, tiled roof. Porch
supported on two large pebbledashed pillars.
Casement windows.

Cottage Pond Cottage, Oxenbourne. Coursed flint walls
C.18 with brick dressings. Tiled roof. Casement
windows. Later brick extensions.

Farmhouse Hilhampton Farm. Malmstone with brick

C.18 dressings. Slate roof with four chimneys.
Casement windows. Brick porch with slate
roof. Extension on east side.

Farmhouse Lower House Farm. 2 storeys. Malmstone and
C.18 brick. Double hipped tiled roof. Sash windows.
C.19 brick tiled porch. On the south side the
brick extension to the east is pebble-dashed.
In places rebuilt in 1942,
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Remarks

Templar’s Brow, south of the Smithy. Flint
with brick dressings. Thatched roof. Casement
windows at eaves level.

Blacksmith’s shop. Single storey. Almost
C-shaped in plan. Brick with tiled roof.
Casement windows with glazing bars.

Farriers, High Street. Rendered facade of
brick quoins and malmstone. Modern tiled
roof. Doorway with fanlight, pilasters and
pediment. Casement windows.

lvy House. Double-fronted. Brick with tiled
roof. Sash windows with cambered arches
“and glazing bars. Simple latticed porch.

Fern Cottage. Double fronted. Coursed flint
with brick dressings. Slate roof. Sash windows
with cambered arches. Latticed porch. Later
brick extension on south side. '

Barnards. Formerly No. 1, Barnards Cottages.

Double fronted, whitewashed brick. Tiled roof.

Sash windows with glazing bars.

Middle Barnards. Formerly Nos. 2, and 3
Barnards Cottages. Colour-washed brick,
tiled roof. Sash windows, with the exception
of one casement.

Barnards Corner. Formerly Nos. 4,5 and 6,
Barnard’s Cottages. White washed brick.
Casement windows some with leaded lights.

Goddard’s Garage, High Street. Formerly
the coachhouse of ‘Glenthorne’. Coursed
knapped flint structure, with flint flake
galleting on south wall and glass galleting
on east elevation.

Clare cottage and No. 11, High Street.

2 storeys. Brick structure consisting of -
purple headers, with flat band between

the storeys. Tiled roof. Casement windows.

Brooklyn House, High Street. 2 storeys.
Brick with flat band between storeys. Tiled
roof. Door with porch. Sash windows with
glazing bars. Two bay windows to right of
door.

The George, Church Street. Colourwashed
brick. Tiled roof with gabled ends. Sash
windows and two gabled dormers. Sign of
St. George and Dragon with wrought iron
bracket and bunch of grapes.

Protection
N.P. Act
A.O.N.B
C.A.
N.P. Act
A.O.NB
C.A.
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A.O.NB
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C.A.
N.P. Act
A.O.N.B
T.&C.P
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N.P. Act
A.O.NB
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A.ONB
C.A.
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A.ON.B
CA.
N.P. Act
A.O.N.B
T.&C.P.
C.A.
N.P. Act
A.O.N.B
T.& C.P.
C.A.
N.P. Act
A.O.NB
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Act
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Grid Ref. and
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SU 682 218
2305 35

SuU 683 219
2305 100

SU 682 220
2305 154

SU 682 220 -
2305 153

SU 682 220
2305 47

SU 680 221
2305 18

SU 680 221
2305 51

SU 680 221
2305 52

SU 680 221
2305 163

SU 681 221
2305 42

SU 681 221
2305 16

SU 680 221
2305 10

115




.Description

and Date Remarks

Group D — (cont.)

Building The Post Office, Church Street. Single storey.
Cc.18 Colour washed brick. Gabled dormers in

tiled roof. Lower windows sash, upper
casements. Central door with simple hood,
shop window.

House The Vicarage, formerly The White House,

Cc.18 Church Street. 2 storeys. Flint with brick
dressings, white plastered facade. Slate roof
with wide eaves. Rear flint and brick

extension.
Cottage Church Cottage, Church Street. Queen Anne
c.18 building of brick with grey headers. Tiled roof

with three gabled dormers. Leaded casement
windows with flat arches. Flint garden wall
one section in brick with rounded brick

coping.
Building Cross Keys, The Cross. Brick with purple
c.18 headers. South side tile hung. Slate roof.

Modern latticed windows with flat arches
over. Later additions in flint and brick.

House Vicarage Lodge, The Cross. Double-fronted.

Cc.18 Colourwashed and plastered flint and brick.
Tiled roof. Pent hood to door. Projecting
section near road suggests a former toll house.

Cottage Court House Cottage. 2 storeys. Brick walls.
C.18 Thatched roof with central chimney.
Casement windows. Built about 1770,

Building Mill House, Frogmore. 2 storeys. Brick

c.18 structure covered with scribed and colour-
washed plaster. Rear of property constructed
of flint and brick. Windows have plaster
mullioned surround. Sash windows. Regency
porch. At boundary of garden to south
there is a cast iron railing and a gate, both of
regency period.

Cottage Bridge Cottage, Frogmore. Coloured-washed
C.18 brick structure. Thatched roof with barn

ends. Central chimney. Casement windows.
Cottage Compton Cottage. 2 storeys. Whitewashed
Cc.18 malmstone and brick on north and east

elevations. Tile-hung on south and west
elevations. Double hipped tiled roof with
gabled dormer. Casement windows with
glazing bars. Door with simple porch.

Building Park Lodge. 2 storeys. Random flint walls
Cc.18 with brick dressings. Casement windows with
gothic arches in dentilled brick. Clay tile
roof with hipped gable ends. Roof extends
down to first storey on west side. Single brick
chimney stack with decorative chimney pots.
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Remarks

— (cont.)

Drayton Cottage. Coursed flint with brick
dressings. Slate roof with four gabled dormers,
and large chimney. Tile hung east wall.
Casement windows with glazing bars. Originally
two cottages.

Drayton Farm. 2 storeys. Goursed flint with
brick dressings. Slate roof, with hipped gable
ends, and brick chimney stack. Casement
windows.

Riplington Farm. 2 storeys. Plaster faced
brick. Slate roof with two lead covered
dormers, and hipped gable ends. Sash windows.
Central brick porch.

Westbury House. Seven bays of recessed
brickwork with semi-circular heads and sash
windows. Central entrance. Tiled roof. Flanked
by 2-storey brick towers with tiled roofs. Each
has an arched entrance for carriages. Wrought
iron weathervane and C.18 clock on north

tower. The building includes former living
accommodation for grooms.

In the grounds of Westbury House. The
icehouses are in good condition, recently

cleared and found to be approximately 15—20 ft.
deep. Brick lined and cylindrical in shape under
grass covered domes. They are approached by
brick-lined passages in which the doors were
originally situated.

Bereleigh Estate. L-shaped plan. 2 storeys.
Coursed flint with brick dressings. Slate roof.
Verandah supported on four brick pillars also
has slate roof. C.19 brick bay window added
to front.

Tigwell Farm. Plaster-faced brick. Tiled roof
with two chimneys. Casement windows. Small
porch on east side.

Bottle Ale Cottages, Frogmore. Flint with

brick dressings. Middle section projects, thatched
roof. Casement windows, some with leaded
panes. New verandah, and brick southern
elevation,

Hyde Cottage. 2 storeys. Coursed knapped
flint, brick quoins. Hipped slate roof, brick
chimneys. C.19 and modern casements.
Panelled door in modern surround.

Protection
N.P. Act
A.O.N.B
N.P. Act
A.O.N.B
N.P. Act
A.O.N.B.
T.&C.P
N.P. Act
A.O.N.B
N.P. Act
A.O.N.B
N.P. Act
A.O.N.B
N.P. Act
A.O.N.B
N.P. Act
A.O.N.B
T.&C.P.
A.O.N.B.
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Grid Ref. and
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SU 668 232
2305 76

SU 670 232
2305 75

SU 664 237
2305 74

SU 657 238
2305 05

SU 658 238
2305 158

SU 686 242
2305 80

SU 681 245
2305 79
SU 684 221
2305 57

SU 683 228
2305 159
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Descl;iption
-and Date

Farmhouse
C.18/19

House
C.19

Almshouses
C.19

House
C.19

Building
C.19

House
C.19
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Remarks

Group D — (cont.)

Park Farm. 2 storeys. East side plaster-faced
brick. Double hipped tiled roof, sash windows.
North wing has casement windows, and two
gabled tiled dormers in inner roof, with some
original leaded panes. South wing added

in 1810, plaster-faced, with slate roof. Sash
windows and projecting porch.

Drayton House., Plaster-faced flint. Slate
roof. Sash windows with shutters to upper
Storey south windows. Slate roofed verandah
on south side supported by five columns,
Whitewashed brick north face, with sash

windows. Long staircase window in same wall
as hooded door.

Forbes Almshouses, Nos. 1,2,3,4and 5,
Church Street, 2 storeys. Flint with stone

dressings. Malmstone band between the storeys.

Tiled roof with gable ends. 2-and 3-light sash
windows. Stone chimney stacks. lead
covered dormers in roof., Two double door-
ways in ashlar. Forbes coat-of-arms and
dedication over doorway. Dedicated by
Mrs. Forbes as a memorial to her husband,
On the opposite side of the road two further
single-storey Almshouses, also of flint with
stone dressings, were built in 1906, financed
by the trustees of the original Forbes
Almshouses.

Lythe House. 3 storeys. Colour washed
plaster-faced brick. Tiled roof with gabled
dormers. Sash windows, glass roofed verandah.

Windwhistle and The Old School House,

The Hyde. One building which formerly
housed both the school and the master’s
house. Built circa, 1845, of coursed knapped
flints with a slate roof. Now converted into
two dwellings. Windwhistle part 1-storey and
part 2 storeys was East Meon School. The
Old School House of 2 storeys, was formerly
the master’s house,

Samuel Kille House, The Square, 2 storeys.
Part of front elevation consists of purple
headers with red brick dressings. Moulded
brick band between the storeys. West side of
knapped flint galleted with bottle-glass, with

an occasional brick string course. The letters
‘S.K." are outlined in flint work. East side of
the building has one cut-brick moulded window
arch blocked. Sash windows, tiled roof. Dated
1825. The whole house now colour-washed.

Grid Ref. and 1

Protection Punchcard No.
N.P. Act SU 685 232 §
A.0.N.B. 2305 29
N.P. Act SU 672 236
AON.B 2305 25
C.A. SU 680222 1
N.P. Act 2305 64 |
A.O.N.B .
N.P. Act SU 700 215
A.O.N.B 2305 72

SU 683 223

2305 151

C.A. SU 679 221
N.P. Act 2305 53
A.O.N.B



Remarks

— (cont.)

South side of High Street, adjacent to Fern
Cottage. 3-bay shop front with connecting
wooden cornice and fascia board. Three
sash windows with glazing bars above. Slate
roof. Later projecting wing to east.

Centre of East Meon. Erected 1922 but
bronze plaque added to commemorate 193945
war dead. Ashlar stone in form of pillar

with cross on top. Built on terraced stone
platform.

Orchard Cottage, High Street. Front appears
to be C.19 but timber framing visible on
south side. Rendered walls with slate roof.
Central doorway with pediment.

South Farm. Brick, flint, greensand stone
blocks and mixed stoi.e structure. South facing
wing was the original timber-framed house,
being an open-hall house of two bays, probably
dating to C.15. Upper floor, chimney and

east end added C.16. Also added at this time
the west wing with jettied front facing west.
Substantial alterations in C.18.

Oxenbourne House.

Church of All Saints. Wooden framework
supported on brick and flint blocks. Roof
with hipped gable ends. Wooden gates.

Forbes’ Almshouses. Built 1858. Coursed
flint with brick quoins. Tiled roof. South side
of structure left open for access. Well now
filled in.

Washer’s Triangle. Two seats placed on a small

triangle of mown grass planted with young trees.

Located in the centre of the village beside the
river. A pleasant resting place for residents and
visitors alike. The former site of three old
thatched cottages.

p F — Historical or Literary Associations

Westbury House. Following a disastrous fire in
November 1904 which completely gutted the
original Palladian style house, the owner Col.

Le Roy Lewis completely rebuilt the house. The
new house incorporated many improvements
new to the C.20 such as electric lighting,

internal telephones and a hot water system.

Ref: West Meon (Collins & Hurst), p.p. 56—63.
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